
From: Liu, Yi-Kai (Fed)
To: Orr, Lochi M. Mrs. (Fed)
Subject: Re: Project Summaries for Division Yearly -- Your input needed by Dec 20
Date: Wednesday, December 21, 2016 6:35:08 PM
Attachments: ykliu-project-summaries-2016.docx

Hi Lochi,

Here are my project summaries, on "one-time programs using isolated qubits" and "phase retrieval and quantum
tomography." Thanks, and I'm sorry for being late!

--Yi-Kai

________________________________________
From: Ronald Boisvert <ronald.boisvert@nist.gov>
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2016 5:09 PM
To: Division 771
Subject: Project Summaries for Division Yearly -- Your input needed by Dec 20

Your help is needed to complete the second stage of compiling our
Division Yearly Report: Project Summaries. These are brief synopses
(e.g., 1/2 to 1 page) of projects active during the past year. They
are, essentially, extended abstracts suitable for digestion by the
broad scientific community.

ALL ACTIVE PROJECTS SHOULD HAVE A SUMMARY. This includes projects
of postdocs, faculty, and guest researchers. It is OK (even preferable)
to combine several related projects with a common theme into a single
project summary that can provide a bigger picture of the overall effort.
If the project is a joint project, then get together with your
collaborators and submit just ONE report. (We can't publish two
different descriptions of the same work.) Please list all contributors
as co-authors, including those in other NIST Labs and external to NIST.

In your write up, try to answer these questions:

          Why are you doing it? Who benefits?
          What was accomplished in the last 18 months?
          What are the next steps?

Please include references to papers submitted or published in the
last 18 months. Graphics of any kind are especially welcome.

I attach some good examples of project summaries from the past.
The summaries submitted last year are all contained in the Division's
yearly report: http://dx.doi.org/10.6028/NIST.IR.8132

    -----------------------------------------------------------
        PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR REPORTS TO Lochi.Orr@nist.gov BY
                   **** Tuesday DEC 20 ****
    -----------------------------------------------------------

Submit as either Word file or ASCII text. It's OK to include equations;
if you submit ASCII insert the equations as LaTeX and I'll format them
for Word.
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An emerging discipline at the intersection of physics and computer science, quantum information science is likely to revolutionize science and technology in the same way that lasers, electronics, and computers did in the 20th century. By encoding information into quantum states of matter, one can, in theory, exploit the seemingly strange behavior of quantum systems to enable phenomenal increases in information storage and processing capability, as well as communication channels with high levels of security. Although many of the necessary physical manipulations of quantum states have been demonstrated experimentally, scaling these up to enable fully capable quantum computers remains a grand challenge. We engage in (a) theoretical studies to understand the power of quantum computing, (b) collaborative efforts with the multi-laboratory experimental quantum science program at NIST to characterize and benchmark specific physical implementations of quantum information processing, and (c) the demonstration and assessment of technologies for quantum communication.







One-Time Programs Using Isolated Qubits

Yi-Kai Liu

A one-time program is a type of trusted computing hardware that performs a pre-programmed computation exactly once, and then self-destructs. One-time programs can be used to perform actions that should not be repeated, such as spending a set amount of money, or casting a vote in an election. They can also be used to protect mobile devices, such as smartphones or autonomous drones, from being stolen and reverse-engineered by an adversary.

We are continuing to develop constructions for one-time programs based on isolated qubits. These are qubits that can be accessed individually, but cannot be entangled. Solid-state quantum systems, such as nuclear spins, are one possible approach to experimental realization of isolated qubits.

On the theoretical side, we are investigating ways of proving that these one-time programs can be composed securely. In particular, we are trying to show that these devices will remain secure when they are accessed sequentially or in parallel, as part of a larger system. We are investigating how techniques involving program obfuscation can be applied here. In addition, we are studying quantum protocols for password-based identification, which might also be achievable in the isolated qubits model.

On the experimental side, we are studying possible implementations of isolated qubits, using solid-state nuclear spins, quantum dots, and trapped ions. While a full-scale implementation of a one-time program would be quite challenging, in the near term it may be possible to do a more limited demonstration. For instance, one may be able to observe a quantum effect called “nonlocality without entanglement,” or “quantum data hiding,” using a system of 5-10 trapped ions, with individual control of each ion.

Phase Retrieval and Quantum Tomography

Yi-Kai Liu

Shelby Kimmel (University of Maryland)

Felix Krahmer (Technical University of Munich)

Phase retrieval is the task of learning an unknown n-dimensional vector x from measurements of the form 



where the vectors  are chosen by the observer. Such measurements arise in a variety of applications, including optical imaging (where one measures the intensity of the light field, but not the phase), and quantum tomography (where one measures the probability, but not the complex amplitude, of the wave function).

We have studied the performance of PhaseLift, a well-known algorithm for phase retrieval that is based on convex relaxation, using different kinds of structured measurements, i.e., different choices for the vectors . In particular, we studied two kinds of measurements: so-called Bernoulli random vectors sampled from the hypercube , and random vectors sampled from spherical and unitary 2-designs. 

In both of these cases, there exist vectors x that cannot be recovered uniquely, given these measurements. However, we showed that these failures are rare, and there exist large classes of vectors that can be recovered successfully using PhaseLift [1][2]. 

Measurements using spherical and unitary 2-designs are of interest for quantum tomography, as they can be implemented easily in many experimental setups, by using stabilizer states and Clifford operations. Using this connection, we showed a method for quantum process tomography that combines ideas from randomized benchmarking and compressed sensing [2]. This method is robust to state preparation and measurement errors, and it is quadratically faster than conventional tomography for processes that are generic (Haar-random) unitaries. We are currently trying to give a more precise theoretical analysis of this method, by making use of recent results that show that random stabilizer states and Clifford operations are “almost” 4-designs.

Finally, in collaboration with the superconducting qubits group at Yale, we investigated the optimal design of tomographic measurements for continuous-variable quantum systems using photon-number-resolving detectors [3].



[1] F. Krahmer and Y.-K. Liu, Phase Retrieval Without Small-Ball Probability Assumptions, Arxiv preprint 1604.07281, April 2016.

[2] S. Kimmel and Y.-K. Liu, Quantum Compressed Sensing Using 2-Designs, Arxiv preprint 1510.08887, October 2015.

[3] [bookmark: _GoBack]C. Shen, R. W. Heeres, P. Reinhold, L. Jiang, Y.-K. Liu, R. J. Schoelkopf, and L. Jiang, Optimized Tomography of Continuous Variable Systems Using Excitation Counting, Phys. Rev. A 94, 052327.











When submitting, please suggest which of the following categories this
applies to:

        Mathematics of Metrology
        Advanced Materials
        High Performance Computing and Visualization
        Quantum Information
        Foundations of Measurement Science for Information Systems
        Mathematical Knowledge Management

I am also looking for project descriptions which could be expanded upon
to produce a FEATURE, i.e. a particularly notable advance which could be
highlighted in a 2-4 page article.  If you have published a notable paper
this year please consider doing a feature. I will need 4-6 of these.
Please contact me if you have an idea. (You don't need to do a project
summary if you do a feature on the same topic.)

Thanks for your help in producing this!

Ron


